
N69450-15-R-2106
Regional Base Operating Support II (RBOS II)

GOVERNMENT PRE AWARD INQUIRY FORM

SOURCE SELECTION INFORMATION - SEE FAR 2.101 AND 3.104

Page Section Para.

1 8/14/2015 all all all

Will the governement provide maps and worload data 
for all services to be performed in the Nine (9) Navy 
Operational Support Centers 

Navy Operational Support Center requirements are not included in this solicitation.

0001

2 8/17/2015 150 of 153

Factor 3 
"Safety"; 

Tech 
Approach to 

Safety

Sub Para (a), 
sub-sub para 

c

The referenced para's last sentence reads "the Safety 
Narrative shall be limited to two pages"  QUESTION: 
Is the material in the preceding sub-sub paras (a. and b.) 
to be included in this two page limit, or may we devote 
the full two pages to our Safety Narrative?Is the 
material in the preceding sub-sub paras (a. and b.) to be 
included in this two page limit, or may we devote the 
full two pages to our Safety Narrative?

a. Experience Modification Rate (EMR) and b. OSHA Days Away from Work, Restricted 
Duty, or Job Transfer (DART) Rate submission requirements are not included in the 
Safety Narrative two page limit.

Refer to: Section M - Evaluation Factors for Award, M.2 Evaluation Factors, a. Technical 
Factors, (3) Factor 3 – Safety

0001

3 8/17/2015 2 of 153

A.5 Prior 
Contract 

Information

The reference contract (N69450-13-D-7700) show 
values that seem at odds with the new solicitation. 
QUESTION: While you clearly state that the new 
workload & volume will not be replicated, but does the 
CoSTAR contract reflect the same values and scope as 
the present solicitation?  

No.  This information is provided merely for
informational purposes.  Contract N69450-13-D-7700 may present data that may not be 
applicable to representative of requirements specified in solicitation N69450-15-R-2106.

Refer to: Section A - Solicitation/Contract Form, A.5 Prior Contract Information.

0001

4 8/17/2015
146-147 of 

153

Tech Factors; 
Factor 1, 
Corporate 

Experience

 (a) 
Solicitation 
Submission 

Requirements
, 

Last sentence, reqds in part: "Relevant projects include 
those that demonstrate the capability to perform 
services similar in size, scope, and complexity as 
described in the statement of work/specifications of the 
RFP with a contract value of 
approximately$4,000,000.00 per year or greater.  
QUESTION: Must submissions include contracts for 
each subsection (Custodial, Grounds, Waste Mgmt. and 
Pest Control) have a $4million contract?  Or can we 
submit for example, Custodial Contracts over $4m/yr, 
and other contracts for example grounds, totalling over 
$1m per year?

No.  All examples of recent, relevant projects that the offeror (including joint venture and 
partnerships) completed and served as the prime contractor must have a  contract value of 
approximately $4,000,000.00 per year or greater.

Refer to: Section M - Evaluation Factors for Award, M.2 Evaluation Factors, a. Technical 
Factors, (1) Factor 1 - Corporate Experience.

0001

5 8/17/2015
146-147 of 

154

Tech Factors; 
Factor 1, 
Corporate 

Experience

 (a) 
Solicitation 
Submission 

Requirements
, 

QUESTION: (PART 1)Must contracts submitted to 
support Corporate Experience, in addition to being over 
$4million, each have Custodial, Grounds, Pest and 
Waste components? 

No.  

The offeror shall submit at least one (1) and no more than five (5) examples of recent, 
relevant projects that the offeror (including joint venture and partnerships) completed and 
served as the prime contractor.  However, all examples of recent, relevant projects that the 
offeror (including joint venture and partnerships) completed and served as the prime 
contractor must have a  contract value of approximately $4,000,000.00 per year or greater. 

Refer to: Section M - Evaluation Factors for Award, M.2 Evaluation Factors, a. Technical 
Factors, (1) Factor 1 - Corporate Experience.

0001

6 8/17/2015
146-147 of 

154

Tech Factors; 
Factor 1, 
Corporate 

Experience

 (a) 
Solicitation 
Submission 

Requirements
, 

Can we submit $4m contracts for say custodial or 
grounds, and other contracts that have been 
subcontracted in an MASC contract, such as Waste 
Management, but are well under the $4m requirement?

No.

All examples of recent, relevant projects that the offeror (including joint venture and 
partnerships) completed and served as the prime contractor must have a  contract value of 
approximately $4,000,000.00 per year or greater.

Refer to: Section M - Evaluation Factors for Award, M.2 Evaluation Factors, a. Technical 
Factors, (1) Factor 1 - Corporate Experience. 0001

Amend No.REFERENCE
Question No.

QUESTION GOVERNMENT RESPONSEDate 
Received



N69450-15-R-2106
Regional Base Operating Support II (RBOS II)

GOVERNMENT PRE AWARD INQUIRY FORM

SOURCE SELECTION INFORMATION - SEE FAR 2.101 AND 3.104

Page Section Para.
Amend No.

Question No.
QUESTION GOVERNMENT RESPONSE 

Received

7 8/17/2015 140 and 148 L and M

5252.215-
9300(a), and 

M.2.2.a.(2)(a)
(b)

Reference: "The non-price proposal shall not contain 
any cost/pricing information, except for salary 
information provided on resumes.", and "Provide a 
completed summary Attachment JB1 FTE for the total 
effort to include the prime contractor and all 
subcontractors for the Base Period."
Comment: Attachment JB1 Supplemental Pricing 
includes labor, material, equipment, overhead, G&A, 
profit, and total price.
Question:  Can the government clarify the staffing 
requirement in paragraph (b) of the Factor 2, 
Management and Technical apporach?

Offerors shall describe staffing levels for the entire contract effort and provide a 
completed
summary Attachment JB1 FTE for the total effort to include the prime contractor and all 
subcontractors.

N69450-15-R-2106 J-B1 Supplemental Pricing - NAS Jacksonville and N69450-15-R-
2106 J-B1 Supplemental Pricing - NAVSTA Mayport will be corrected revised via 
Amendment 0001.  

N69450-15-R-2106 J-B1 Supplemental Pricing - NAS Jacksonville revised to N69450-15-
R-2106 J-B1 FTEs - NAS Jacksonville

N69450-15-R-2106 J-B1 Supplemental Pricing - NAVSTA Mayport revised to N69450-15-
R-2106 J-B1 FTEs - NAVSTA Mayport 

Refer to Amendment 0001.
0001

8 8/17/2015 141 of 153 L
5252.215-

9300(b)(2)d

Reference: "Formulas shall be traceable. Failure to do 
so may be cause to render the offer non-responsive."
Question: Can the Government clarify the requirement 
for a "traceble" formula?

A traceable formula is one that can be visible/tracked.  Formulas shall be provided in the 
offeror's pricing spreadsheet(s) and data shall be traceable via formulas.

0001

9 8/17/2015 142 of 153 L
5252.215-

9300(b)(3)f

Reference: "Blank tab dividers are excluded from the 
page limitation."
Question: Are the Table of Contents and the Cover 
Page excluded from the page limitation?

As stated in 5252.215-9300(b)(3)f. Only blank tab dividers, Past Performance 
Questionnaires and Contractor Performance Assessment Reports are excluded from the 
100 count page limitation.

0001

10 8/17/2015 147 of 153 M
M.2.2.a.(1)(a)

(b)

Reference: "Projects with a total value below 
$4,000,000.00 per year will be considered 
unacceptable."
Questions: Being that this is a small business set aside 
procument, would the government consider reducing 
the individual value of $4 million per year or greater?

No.

All examples of recent, relevant projects that the offeror (including joint venture and 
partnerships) completed and served as the prime contractor must have a  contract value of 
approximately $4,000,000.00 per year or greater.

Refer to: Section M - Evaluation Factors for Award, M.2 Evaluation Factors, a. Technical 
Factors, (1) Factor 1 - Corporate Experience. 0001

11 8/17/2015 147 of 153 M
M.2.2.a.(1)(a)

(b)

Reference: "If the offeror is a Joint Venture (JV), each 
member of the JV must demonstrate prime contractor 
experience on at least one relevant project. If each 
member of the Joint Venture does not have at least one 
relevant experience project, then the offeror will be 
considered unacceptable."
Comment: The Purpose of the Mentor-Protégé Program 
is so that Mentors can provide assistance relevant to 
performance of non-8(a) contracts so that protégé firms 
more fully develop their competitive capabilities. The 
requirement of each member of a Joint Venture to have 
prime experiance of at least $4,000,000.00 is contrary 
to the purpose of the Mentor-Protégé Program.
Questions:  Will the Government consider changing the 
requirement to one member of the Joint Venture to have 
one relevant experiance project?

No.  As stated in Section M.2 Evaluation Factors (a)(1)(b), if the offeror is a Joint Venture 
(JV), each member of the JV must demonstrate prime contractor experience on at least 
one relevant project.

0001



N69450-15-R-2106
Regional Base Operating Support II (RBOS II)

GOVERNMENT PRE AWARD INQUIRY FORM
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Page Section Para.
Amend No.

Question No.
QUESTION GOVERNMENT RESPONSE 

Received

12 8/17/2015 148 of 153 M
M.2.2.a.(2)(a)

(b)

Reference: "Provide a completed summary Attachment 
JB1 FTE for the total effort to include the prime 
contractor and all subcontractors for the Base Period."
Question: Is  "Attachment JB1 FTE" and  "Attachment 
JB1 Supplemental Pricing" the same?  If not, can the 
government provide a copy of the  "Attachment JB1 
FTE"?

Yes.

N69450-15-R-2106 J-B1 Supplemental Pricing - NAS Jacksonville and N69450-15-R-
2106 J-B1 Supplemental Pricing - NAVSTA Mayport will be corrected revised via 
Amendment 0001.  

N69450-15-R-2106 J-B1 Supplemental Pricing - NAS Jacksonville revised to N69450-15-
R-2106 J-B1 FTEs - NAS Jacksonville

N69450-15-R-2106 J-B1 Supplemental Pricing - NAVSTA Mayport revised to N69450-15-
R-2106 J-B1 FTEs - NAVSTA Mayport 

Refer to Amendment 0001.
0001

13 8/17/2015 30 of 80
C (NAS 

Jacksonville)

0200000 
Spec Iten 

2.13.3

Reference: "The Contractor shall provide pricing for 
multiple COLS where indicated."
Question: Can the government provide the COLS or 
Service Class for ELINs A005, A006, A007, and A008?

Bureau of Medicine and Surgery (BUMED) Mandated Service Classes for Hospitals and 
Clinics and Service Classes identified by facility in Section J, Attachemnt J-1503010-07 
Custodial Inventory.

Section J, Attachemnt J-1503010-07 Custodial Inventory Bureau of Medicine and Surgery 
(BUMED) requirements revised via Amendment 0001.

Refer to: Section J, Attachment J-1503010-05 Mandated Service Classes for Hospitals and 
Clinics and Attachment J-1503010-04 Service Class for BUMEDNavy Medicine Support 
Command requirements. 0001

14 8/17/2015 All J NA

Reference: N69450-15-R-2106 J-1503010-07 Custodial 
Inventory - NAS Jacksonville
Question: The Custodial Inventory is in a PDF Format. 
Can the Government provide the Custodial Inventory in 
an Excel spreadsheet?

The Adobe Acrobat Document is the official solicitation/contract document.

Yes.  This information will be provided merely for informational purposes.  Refer to 
Amendment 0001.

0001

15 8/17/2015 All J NA

Reference: N69450-15-R-2106 J-1503010-07 Custodial 
Inventory - NAVSTA Mayport
Question: Can the Government provide the Custodial 
Inventory in an Excel spreadsheet?

The Adobe Acrobat Document is the official solicitation/contract document.

Yes.  This information will be provided merely for
informational purposes.  Refer to Amendment 0001. 0001

16 8/17/2015 1 J

Reference: N69450-15-R-2106 J-1503010-07 
Custodial Inventory - NAS Jacksonville, Bureau of 
Medicine and Surgery (BUMED), Bldgs: 2004, 2030, 
2057, 2090, and 2091.
Question: The Common Output Level or Service Class 
for these building state "Refer to Section C, Annex 
0200000, Spec Item 2.13.3 COLS Options".  Can the 
Government provide clarfication as to what COL is to 
be applied to these requirements?

Bureau of Medicine and Surgery (BUMED) Mandated Service Classes for Hospitals and 
Clinics and Service Classes identified by facility in Section J, Attachemnt J-1503010-07 
Custodial Inventory.

Section J, Attachemnt J-1503010-07 Custodial Inventory Bureau of Medicine and Surgery 
(BUMED) requirements revised via Amendment 0001.

Refer to: Section J, Attachment J-1503010-05 Mandated Service Classes for Hospitals and 
Clinics and Attachment J-1503010-04 Service Class for BUMEDNavy Medicine Support 
Command requirements. 0001

17 8/17/2015 1 J

Reference: N69450-15-R-2106 J-1503010-07 
Custodial Inventory - NAS Jacksonville, Commander, 
Navy Region Southeast (CNRSE), Facilities # 1, 867W, 
903, and 919.
Question: The column for Additional Measures has 
"AM3".  Can the Government provide clarification as to 
what this means?

NAS Jacksonville, Commander, Navy Region Southeast (CNRSE) requirements revised 
via Amendment 0001.

Refer to: Section J, Attachment J-1503010-03
Common Output Level Standards, Addtl Meas Level 3 for Additional Measures Level 3 
(AM3) work requirements.

0001
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Received

18 8/17/2015 1 J

Reference: N69450-15-R-2106 J-1503010-07 
Custodial Inventory - NAS Jacksonville, Commander, 
Navy Region Southeast (CNRSE), Bldgs: 4, 9, 10C, 12, 
13, 27W, 27E, 103, 110, 117, 118, 135S, 147, 162, 170, 
200, 374, 402, 403, 406, 506, 554, 569, 614, 616, 666, 
730, 749, 750, 751, 752, 789, 750, 751, 752, 789, 816, 
848W, 850, 851, AND 858..
Question: The Common Output Level or Service Class 
for these building state "Refer to Section C, Annex 
0200000, Spec Item 2.13.3 COLS Options".  Can the 
Government provide clarfication as to what COL is to 
be applied to these requirements?

NAS Jacksonville, Commander, Navy Region Southeast (CNRSE) requirements revised 
via Amendment 0001.

Section J, Attachment J-1503010-03 Common Output Level Standards applies to all 
region facilities/spaces listed in the Custodial Inventory provided in J-1503010-07.  The 
Contractor shall price work requirements as detailed per COL Base or Additional 
Measures Level in the corresponding ELIN listed in J-0200000-07.

Upon initial contract award the Government reserves the right to award options to increase 
or decrease COLS for the base period.

The Government reserves the right to increase or decrease the COLS at the time it 
exercises its option to extend the contract at the prices indicated in the schedule for 
1503010 Custodial, 1503020 Pest Control, 1503030 Integrated Solid Waste Management, 
and 1503050 Grounds Maintenance and Landscaping.

0001

19 8/17/2015 1 J

Reference: N69450-15-R-2106 J-1503010-07 
Custodial Inventory - NAS Jacksonville, Commander, 
Navy Region Southeast (CNRSE), Bldgs:876, 926, 932, 
956, 966, 1003, 1004, 1041, 1050, 1053, 1061, and 
1096.
Question: The Common Output Level or Service Class 
for these building state "Refer to Section C, Annex 
0200000, Spec Item 2.13.3 COLS Options".  Can the 
Government provide clarfication as to what COL is to 
be applied to these requirements?

NAS Jacksonville, Commander, Navy Region Southeast (CNRSE) requirements revised 
via Amendment 0001.

Section J, Attachment J-1503010-03 Common Output Level Standards applies to all 
region facilities/spaces listed in the Custodial Inventory provided in J-1503010-07.  The 
Contractor shall price work requirements as detailed per COL Base or Additional 
Measures Level in the corresponding ELIN listed in J-0200000-07.

Upon initial contract award the Government reserves the right to award options to increase 
or decrease COLS for the base period.

The Government reserves the right to increase or decrease the COLS at the time it 
exercises its option to extend the contract at the prices indicated in the schedule for 
1503010 Custodial, 1503020 Pest Control, 1503030 Integrated Solid Waste Management, 
and 1503050 Grounds Maintenance and Landscaping.

0001

20 8/17/2015 1 J

Reference: N69450-15-R-2106 J-1503010-07 
Custodial Inventory - NAS Jacksonville, Commander, 
Navy Medicine Support Command, Facilities # 2005.
Question: The column for Additional Measures has 
"AM3".  Can the Government provide clarification as to 
what this means?

Navy Medicine Support Command requirements revised via Amendment 0001.

Refer to Section J, Attachment J-1503010-05
Mandated Service Classes for Hospitals and Clinics for Navy Medicine Support Command 
requirements.

0001

21 8/17/2015 1 J

Reference: N69450-15-R-2106 J-1503010-07 
Custodial Inventory - NAS Jacksonville, Maritime 
Expeditionary Security Squadron (MSRON), Facilities 
# 938.
Question: The column for Additional Measures has 
"AM3".  Can the Government provide clarification as to 
what this means?

Maritime Expeditionary Security Squadron (MSRON) requirements revised via 
Amendment 0001.

Refer to Section J, Attachment J-1503010-04 Service Class for Maritime Expeditionary 
Security Squadron (MSRON) work requirements.

0001



N69450-15-R-2106
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Amend No.

Question No.
QUESTION GOVERNMENT RESPONSE 

Received

22
Attachment 
1503010-07

Custodial 
Inventory

Column listed 
as “Common 

Output 
Service 

Level”, and 
PWS 2.13.3, 
page 30 of 

80.

We request the government please clarify the 
requirement for service under the Common Output 
Service Level that is indicated as “Mandated” and 
“Refer to Section C,  PWS 2.13.3 of the RFP (Annex 
0200000) for COL Options.”  Current information is 
confusing as to how the Gov’t wants the estimate to 
contain.

Mandated revised to reference the Section J Attachment with the specific work 
requirements via Amendment 0001.

0001

23

Attachment J-
1503010-07 

and 
Attachment J-
1503010-05 

Section B 
CLIN 200l 
and PWS 

2.13.3 (page 
30 of 80)

CLIN 2001 refers to Base Period FFP (COL 4) as the 
rollup CLIN for the FFP pricing for ELINs A001 
through A088 from Attachment J-0200000-07.  How 
does this relate to the various Class of Services as listed 
in the Custodial Inventory, and for the Class of Service 
stated as listed in PWS 2.13.3 of the RFP.  We request 
clarification of the requirement to insure all bidders can 
conduct proper estimates.

CLIN 2001 Custodial COL4 Base Measures applies to ELIN A009.  The Mandated 
Service Classes or Service Class requirement for all other CLIN 2001 Custodial ELINs are 
provided in revised Section J, Attachment J-1503010-07 Custodial Inventory.    

Section J, Attachment J-1503010-07 Custodial Inventory requirements revised via 
Amendment 0001.

Section J, Attachment J-1503010-03 Common Output Level Standards work requirements 
apply to all Commander, Navy Region Southeast custodial requirements.

Section J, Attachment J-1503010-04 Service Class requirements apply as indicated in 
Section J, Attachment J-1503010-07 Custodial Inventory, Column titled Common Output 
Level or Service Class.

0001

24 Page 31 of 80

Section B, 
CLIN 2001 & 
PWS 2.13.3.2

Section B, CLIN 2001, states that the Base Period  FFP 
is for (COL 4), while PWS 2.13.3.2, page 31 of 80 the 
Gov’t states that their intent is to procure services at the 
COL 3 Base Measures.  Please clarify which is correct.

Section J, Attachment J-1503010-03 Common Output Level Standards applies to all 
region facilities/spaces listed in the Custodial Inventory provided in J-1503010-07.  The 
Contractor shall price work requirements as detailed per COL Base or Additional 
Measures Level in the corresponding ELIN listed in J-0200000-07.

Upon initial contract award the Government reserves the right to award options to increase 
or decrease COLS for the base period.

The Government reserves the right to increase or decrease the COLS at the time it 
exercises its option to extend the contract at the prices indicated in the schedule for 
1503010 Custodial, 1503020 Pest Control, 1503030 Integrated Solid Waste Management, 
and 1503050 Grounds Maintenance and Landscaping.

0001

25

Grounds 
Maintenance, 

ELINs & 
Section J

Attachments 
J-0200000, J-
1503050-04 

& J-1503050-
06

ELINs provides requirement for Navy Medicine 
Support Command as ELIN A076, Atch J-1503050-04 
calls it the same, however Atch J-1503050-06 calls for 
Irrigation System for Navy Dental Corp - there is no 
ELIN for Navy Dental Corp.  Is this function one and 
the same or different reuirements?  Please clarify.

Navy Dental Corp Irrigation Systems requirements deleted and added to Bureau of 
Medicine and Surgery (BUMED) Irrigation Systems Inventory revised via Refer to 
Amendment 0001.

Refer to Section J, Sub-annex 1503050 Grounds Maintenance and Landscaping, 
Attachment J-1503050-06 Irrigation Systems.

0001

26 JL-1 Header

The header for the Attachment J-LI references 
solicitation N69450-15-4-2119 for Mid-South NOSC 
BOS Services. Shouldn't it be Solicitation number 
N69450-15-R-2106 for RBOS II Services? Please 
clarify.

The header for Attachment JL-1 is revised to read "Solicitation number N69450-15-R-
2106 for RBOS II Services" via Amendment 0001.

0001

27 JM-1 Header

The PPQ references solcitiation number N69450-15-R-
2006. Shouldn't the solicitation number be  N69450-15-
R-2106? Please clarify.

The solicitation number on the PPQ is revised via Amendment 0001.

0001
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Received

28
91 and 109 of 

153 Basic RFP
These pages are blank. Please confirm that no 
information is missing.

The Government confirms that no information is missing.  Pages are left blank 
intentionally. 0001

29
89 and 108 of 

153 E and H
5252.237-

9033 and H.7

Section E states that a Schedule of Deductions is due 
within 15 days of contract award. H.7 states that unit 
prices will be used as the basis of deduction and a 
schedule of deductions is not required. Please clarify.

The submission of a schedule of deductions is not required.  The unit prices provided by 
the successful offeror will be utilized as the basis of deductions pursuant to the clause at 
5252.246-9303.

0001

30
1 and 140 - 
142 of 153

SF 33 and 
Section L

Block 10 (SF 
33) and 

5252.215-
9300

Block 10 of the SF 33 requires an original + 5 (6 total) 
of the proposal. However, the instructions in Section L 
request 2 copies (original + 1) of the Responsibility 
Determination; 3 (original + 2) of the Price Prposal; and 
6 (original + 5) of the Non-Price Proposal. PLease 
clarify.

Follow the instructions in Section L: 5252.215-9300 Content of Proposals:  Submit 2 
copies (1 original and 1 copy) of the Responsibility Determination; 3 copies (1 original 
and 2 copies) of the Price Proposal; and 6 copies (1 original and 5 copies) of the Non-
Price Proposal.

0001

31 142 of 153 L

5252.215-
9300, 

(b)(3)(h)

Are graphics (such as organization charts, tables, 
process charts), etc.) excluded from the 11 point font 
requirement?

No.  See amendment 0001 which revises the Clause 5252.215-9300, Paragraph (b)(1) to 
state that "Text (including text in all graphics, exhibits, and tables) will be black using a 
font no smaller than 11 point, Times New Roman or Courier.

0001

32 142 of 153 L

5252.215-
9300, 

(b)(3)(h)

Is organizational text in headers and footers (such as 
page numbers, company name, etc.) excluded from the 
11 point font requirement?

No, as stated in 5252.215-9300(b)(3)h., "Text will
be black using a font no smaller than 11 point, Times New Roman or Courier."

0001

33 142 of 153 L

5252.215-
9300, 

(b)(3)(e)

Are the title page/cover page and table of contents 
excluded from the 100-page limit for the Non-Price 
Proposal?

See Question Number 9.

0001

34
142 and 151 

of 153 L and M

5252.215-
9300, 

(b)(3)(h) and 
M.2, Factor 4 

Past 
Performance

CPARS are often less than 11 point font and don't 
always adhere to 1" margins. Are they excluded from 
these formatting requirements?

Yes.  Contractor Performance Assessment Reports will not count toward the page 
limitation and are not required to be reformatted to meet the 11 point font and 1" margin 
requirements.  

0001

35 147 of 153 M Factor 1, (c )
"Client points of contact" are requested. How many 
points of contact are required?

For each recent, relevant project submitted for Factor 1, at least one client point of contact 
shall be provided. 0001

36
7 of 11 and 8 

of 14 F

Annex 
1503020, 

Specification 
Item 3

Section F requires that the Contractor's Work Plan 
(CWP) be submitted with the proposal. Neither 
Sections L nor M request or make mention of the CWP. 
CWPs are typically quite lengthy.  Please clarify when 
it is to be submitted.  If it is to be submitted with the 
proposal, is it excluded from the 100-page limit?

Date(s) of Submission changed from "With the proposal" to "Within 15 calendar days 
after award and within seven calendar days of changes."  Refer to Amendment 0001.

The offeror is not required to submit the CWP with its proposal; however, if the CWP is 
submitted with the proposal, it is included in the 100-page limit of the Non-price Proposal.                                                                                                                  

0001
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Received

37 42237 147 of 153 M
M.2.2.a.(1)(a)

(b)

Reference: "If the offeror is a Joint Venture (JV), each 
member of the JV must demonstrate prime contractor 
experience on at least one relevant project. If each 
member of the Joint Venture does not have at least one 
relevant experience project, then the offeror will be 
considered unacceptable."
Questions:  Will the Government consider the 
experience of the mentor’s past performance, in a Joint 
Venture under the SBA Mentor-Protégé Program Joint 
Venture Agreement, without affiliation under the 
Mentor Protégé Program - 13 CFR 124.520 d (4)?

Yes.  However, if the offeror is a Joint Venture (JV), each member of the JV must 
demonstrate prime contractor experience on at least one relevant project.  Refer to: 
Section M - Evaluation Factors for Award, M.2 Evaluation Factors, a. Technical Factors, 
(1) Factor 1 - Corporate Experience.   

0001

38 8/24/2015

63 of 80 
(Section C - 

1503030 
NAS JAX) 3.2.2.

The 
Contractor 

shall deliver 
industrial and 
commercial 
recyclable 

solid waste to 
the Defense 
Reutilization 

and 
Marketing 

Office 
(DRMO).

Will the DRMO accept metal and cardboard at this 
facility? What other materials will the DRMO accept? 
What is the DRMO Bldg number? Does this facility 
have scales, and can the contractor utilize them?

No.  The Contractor shall deliver industrial and commercial recyclable solid waste to an 
approved recycling facility.   Refer to Amendment 0001.

0001

39 8/24/2015

64 of 82 
(Section C - 

1503030 
Mayport ) 3.2.2.

The 
Contractor 

shall deliver 
industrial and 
commercial 
recyclable 

solid waste to 
the Defense 
Reutilization 

and 
Marketing 

Office 
(DRMO).

Will the DRMO accept metal and cardboard at this 
facility? What other materials will the DRMO accept? 
What is the DRMO Bldg number? Does this facility 
have scales, and can the contractor utilize them?

No. The Contractor shall deliver industrial and commercial recyclable solid waste to an 
approved recycling facility.   Refer to Amendment 0001.

0001



N69450-15-R-2106
Regional Base Operating Support II (RBOS II)

GOVERNMENT PRE AWARD INQUIRY FORM

SOURCE SELECTION INFORMATION - SEE FAR 2.101 AND 3.104

Page Section Para.
Amend No.

Question No.
QUESTION GOVERNMENT RESPONSE 

Received

40 8/24/2015

65 of 82 
(Section C - 

1503030 
Mayport ) 3.4.3

One foreign 
port waste 
container 
shall be 

permanently 
staged 

outside the Ai 
Operations 
terminal, 

Building 90.

Will all FPOW collections occur at BLDG 90? If not, 
what other buildings will have FPOW collections? 
Which ELIN should this be costed to?

No.  All foreign port origin waste collections will not occur at building 90 Naval Station 
Mayport.

All foreign port waste collections will occur at various locations throughout Naval Station 
Mayport, Florida as home ported vessels return from deployment.  

Foreign port waste firm fixed price requirements are to be included in Commander, Navy 
Region Southeast (CNRSE) 1503030 Integrated Solid Waste Management - Spec. Item 3 
FFP Work pricing under ELINs A007, B007, C007, D007, E007, and F007. 

0001

41 8/24/2015

64 of 82 
(Section C - 

1503030 
Mayport) & 

62 of 80 
(Section C - 

1503030 
NAS JAX) 3.2

Historically, 
approximatel
y 4,247 tons 

of solid waste 
has been 

disposed of 
annually

Please confirm if this is the total tonnage of both bases, 
or if there is 4,727 tons collected at each base.

Historically, approximately 4,247 tons of solid waste has been disposed of at Naval Air 
Station Jacksonville annually.

Historically, approximately 3,552 tons of solid waste has been disposed of at Naval 
Station Mayport annually.

0001

42 8/24/2015

64 of 82 
(Section C - 

1503030 
Mayport) & 

62 of 80 
(Section C - 

1503030 
NAS JAX) 3.2

Historically, 
approximatel
y 4,247 tons 

of solid waste 
has been 

disposed of 
annually

Would the Government please split out the FEL and RO 
tonnage at each base?

This information is not available.  

0001

43 8/24/2015

Section C - 
1503030 
Mayport None None

At the site visit, we visited the Solid Waste Transfer 
station. I might have overlooked it, but I did not see a 
Spec Item for this requirement. Please clarify.

The Bulk Transfer Station is provided as Government-Furnished Property.  All such 
facilities, equipment, and materials will be provided in 'as is' condition, and their use is at 
the option of the Contractor.

Refer to Section C, Annex 0200000 Management and Administration, Specification Item 
2.4 Government-Furnished Property, Materials and Services and Section J, Annex 
0200000 Management and Administration, Attachment  J-0200000-05 Government-
Furnished Property, Materials, and Services

0001

44 8/24/2015

Section C - 
1503030 
Mayport None

Solid Waste 
Transfer 
Station

Was the Front End Loader at the Transfer Station 
provided by the contractor?

Yes.   The Front End Loader at Naval Station Mayport Bulk Transfer Station is provided 
by the Contractor.

Except for items identified as Government Furnished, the Contractor shall provide all 
equipment, materials, parts, supplies, components, and facilities to perform the 
requirements of this contract.  Refer to Section C, Annex 0200000 Management and 
Administration, Specification Item 2.5 Contractor-Furnished Items.

Refer to: Section J, Attachment J-0200000-05 Government-Furnished Property, Materials, 
and Services for a listing of items identified as Government-Furnished.

0001



N69450-15-R-2106
Regional Base Operating Support II (RBOS II)

GOVERNMENT PRE AWARD INQUIRY FORM

SOURCE SELECTION INFORMATION - SEE FAR 2.101 AND 3.104

Page Section Para.
Amend No.

Question No.
QUESTION GOVERNMENT RESPONSE 

Received

45 8/24/2015

Section C - 
1503030 
Mayport None

Solid Waste 
Transfer 
Station

How many trailer loads of waste are taken to the Trial 
Ridge Landfill annually?

This information is not available.

0001

46 8/24/2015

Section C - 
1503030 
Mayport None

Solid Waste 
Transfer 
Station

May Solid Waste from NAS Jax be taken aboard Naval 
Station Mayport and dumped at the Transfer Station? 
There would be significant cost saving synergies for the 
Government if allowed to do so.

No.  The Contractor shall not transport Naval Air Station Jacksonville solid waste to 
Naval Station Mayport Bulk Transfer Station. 

0001

47 8/24/2015

Section C - 
1503030 
Mayport None

Solid Waste 
Transfer 
Station

May Solid Waste from the off base facilities of Naval 
Station Mayport (i.e. DECA Commissary, CDC) be 
taken aboard Naval Station Mayport and dumped at the 
Transfer Station?

Yes.

0001

48 8/24/2015

All Pages 
Section J - 

1503030-03 
Mayport and 

NAS JAX

Location and 
Frequency/Hi
storical Data

Drums/33-55 
Gallon 

Containers

Are liners required for the Drums/33-55 Gallon 
Containers? If so, is the contractor responsible for 
purchasing them?

No, liners are not required.

0001

49 8/24/2015
1503030-03 
NAS JAX

Location and 
Frequency/Hi
storical Data

Location and 
Frequency/Hi
storical Data

During the site visit, there were (2) 40 CY and (1) 20 
CY roll-off containers at BLDG 1005; however, the 
containers, and the building itself, are not listed in Sec 
J. Please confirm that Attachment J -1503030-03 is 
accurate.

The Government confirms that Attachment J -1503030-03 is correct.

0001

50 8/24/2015
1503030-03 
NAS JAX

Location and 
Frequency/Hi
storical Data

Location and 
Frequency/Hi
storical Data

During the site visit, there were no roll-offs observed at 
the FRCSE facilities, despite this command having a 
great number of containers. Are the roll-offs ever 
brought inside the hangers?Please confirm that 
Attachment J -1503030-03 is accurate.

NAS Jacksonville site visit did not transit areas where FRCSE dumpsters are located. 
Historically, the roll-off have not been brought inside the hangars.  The Government 
confirms that Attachment J -1503030-03 is correct.

0001

51 8/24/2015

All Pages 
Section J - 

1503030-03 
Mayport and 

NAS JAX

Location and 
Frequency/Hi
storical Data Compactors

BLDGS 2080,1000, 951, 101U, 101W, 190, and 987 on 
NAS Jax, and BLDG 1900 on Mayport all have 
compactors. Would the Government please distinguish 
the type of compactor at each facility? Specifically, if 
they are self-contained, or stationary RAMs with 
breakaway containers.

Currently there are self contained compactors at building 2080, 1000, and 951 at Naval 
Air Station Jacksonville.  All other compactors at Naval Air Station Jacksonville have 
breakaway containers.

Currently there is one breakaway compactor at building 1900 Naval Station Mayport.
0001

52 8/24/2015

Section C - 
1503030 

Mayport & 
Section C - 

1503030 
NAS JAX

Location and 
Frequency/Hi
storical Data

Recycle 
Centers

On the site visit, a recycling center was observed at 
both NAS Jax, and Mayport. Does the contractor have 
any responsibility at these locations? If so, please 
provide details and the building number.

No.  The Contractor is not responsible for the recycling center at Naval Air Station 
Jacksonville and Naval Station Mayport.

0001

53 8/24/2015 15 of 82

Section C 
0200000 - 

Management 
and Admin 
(Mayport) 2.7.1.3

Please confirm that the offeror is to provide a Project 
Manager, Quality Manager and SSHO for each base at 
NAS Jax and Mayport

Yes.  The Contractor shall provide a Project Manager (PM), Quality Manager, and Site 
Safety and Health Officer (SSHO) at each installation, Naval Air Station Jacksonville, 
Florida and Naval Station Mayport, Florida.    

0001

54 8/24/2015 8 of 9

Section J-
1503010-07 
Custodial 
Inventory

Document 
Automation 

and 
Production 

Service 
(DAPS)

COL3 is listed as COL.  Please confirm if COL3 is Base 
Measure, Add'l Meas Level 1 or Add'l Measure Level 3

Document Automation and Production Service (DAPS) custodial requirements revised to 
Class C Service via Amendment 0001.  Refer to Amendment 0001.

0001



N69450-15-R-2106
Regional Base Operating Support II (RBOS II)

GOVERNMENT PRE AWARD INQUIRY FORM

SOURCE SELECTION INFORMATION - SEE FAR 2.101 AND 3.104

Page Section Para.
Amend No.

Question No.
QUESTION GOVERNMENT RESPONSE 

Received

55 8/24/2015 80 of 87
Section J-

1503050-03

This attachment only provides guidance for Improved 
Area work.  Please provide the 
requirements/frequencies for Semi-Improved and 
Unimproved Grounds.

The Contractor shall develop and submit a schedule for the control of undesired 
vegetation per Section F.

Refer to Section C, Sub-annex 1503050 Grounds Maintenance and Landscaping, 
Specification Items 3.2 Semi-improved Grounds and 3.3 Unimproved
Grounds.

0001

56 8/24/2015
Section J-

1503010-05 Legend
Please confirm that D (Daily) represents once per day. The Government confirms that D (Daily) represents once per day.

0001

57 8/24/2015

Section J-
1503010-07 
Custodial 
Inventory

Navy 
Entomology 

Center of 
Excellence 

(NECE)

COL3 is listed as COL.  Please confirm if COL3 is Base 
Measure, Add'l Meas Level 1 or Add'l Measure Level 3

Navy Entomology Center of Excellence (NECE) custodial requirements revised to Class B 
Service via Amendment 0001.  Refer to Amendment 0001.

0001

58 8/24/2015 7 of 11
Section F - 
1503020 2.3.5 and 3

Will the Planned Pesticide Use Sheets including 
Pesticide Labels and Saftey Data Sheets and the 
Contractors Work Plan be included in the 100 page 
limit of the Non-Price Proposal?

Yes.  The offeror is not required to submit the Planned Pesticide Use sheets including 
Pesticide Labels and Safety Data Sheets and the Contractors Work Plan with its proposal; 
however, if they are submitted with the proposal, they are included in the 100 page limit 
of the Non-price Proposal.  0001

59 8/24/2015

Request the government allow for at least 2 week 
extension to review all questions and answers and allow 
for follow-up questions if needed.  Especially given the 
changes to scope of work requirements and COL 
element pricing requirements. 

The proposal due date remains unchanged.  As stated in the RFP, proposals are due 16 
September 2015 at 2:00 PM EDT unless revised via amendment to the RFP. 

0001

60 8/24/2015 RFP Page 142 Section L

(3) Non-Price 
Proposal 
Binder; e. 

The non-price 
proposal 
submittal 
shall not 

exceed 100 
pages.

The previous RBOS II Non-Price Proposal that was 
submitted in 2012 had a page limit of 200. Since the 
current RBOS II Non-Price Proposal is extremely 
similar, will the Government consider increasing the 
current page count by 50 to allow for adequate space to 
provide a technically compliant proposal?

No. As required in RFP Clause 5252.215-9300, Paragraph (3)(e), the non-price proposal 
shall not exceed 100 pages. 

0001

61 8/24/2015 RFP Page 142 Section L

(3) Non-Price 
Proposal 
Binder; e. 

The non-price 
proposal 
submittal 
shall not 

exceed 100 
pages.

 In Factor 1: Corporate Experience, since we are listing 
relevant projects and descriptions of those projects, we 
recommend Factor 1 be exempt from page limitation.  

No.  Facotr 1 is part of the Non-price proposal.  As required in RFP Clause 5252.215-
9300, Paragraph (3)(e), the non-price proposal shall not exceed 100 pages.

0001



N69450-15-R-2106
Regional Base Operating Support II (RBOS II)

GOVERNMENT PRE AWARD INQUIRY FORM

SOURCE SELECTION INFORMATION - SEE FAR 2.101 AND 3.104

Page Section Para.
Amend No.

Question No.
QUESTION GOVERNMENT RESPONSE 

Received

62 8/24/2015 RFP Page 142 Section L

(3) Non-Price 
Proposal 
Binder; e. 

The non-price 
proposal 
submittal 
shall not 

exceed 100 
pages.

Would a Table of Contents be exempt from page count? No.  See Government's response to GPI Question Number 9.

0001

63 8/24/2015 RFP Page 142 Section L

(3) Non-Price 
Proposal 
Binder; e. 

The non-price 
proposal 
submittal 
shall not 

exceed 100 
pages.

Can past performance recognition documents (such as 
awards, award fee determinations, customer letters of 
commendation, etc.) be excluded from page count?

No.  Performance recognition documents are included in the page count.

0001

64 8/24/2015 RFP Page 142 Section L

(3) Non-Price 
Proposal 

Binder; h. 
Text will be 
black using a 

font no 
smaller than 

11 point, 
Times New 
Roman or 
Courier.

Can font size for graphics and tables be a different font, 
and a smaller font size, such as 8 point, which is typical 
within other Navy procurement requirements?

See Government's response to GPI Question Number 31.

0001

65 8/24/2015 RFP Page 142 Section L

(3) Non-Price 
Proposal 
Binder; i. 

Foldouts are 
only 

permitted for 
the 

organization 
charts.

Some charts are better and more accurately presented 
on 11x17.  Will the Government consider allowing 
other charts and information to be presented on 11x17 
other than the organization charts?

No.  Paper will be white, 8 ½ by 11 inches and have margins of 1 inch on all four sides.  
Foldouts are only permitted for the organization charts.

0001



N69450-15-R-2106
Regional Base Operating Support II (RBOS II)

GOVERNMENT PRE AWARD INQUIRY FORM

SOURCE SELECTION INFORMATION - SEE FAR 2.101 AND 3.104

Page Section Para.
Amend No.

Question No.
QUESTION GOVERNMENT RESPONSE 

Received

66 8/24/2015 RFP Page 126 Section I

FAC 
5252.245-

9300; 
GOVERNME

NT-
FURNISHED 
PROPERTY, 
MATERIALS

, AND 
SERVICES 
(SRP 2014); 

In accordance 
with FAR 
52.245-1, 

"GOVERNM
ENT 

PROPERTY” 
(Apr 2012) 

clause, 
Section I, the 
Government 
will provide 

the 
Contractor 
the use of 

Government-
owned 

utilities for 
use only in 
connection 
with this 

contract. The 
use of 

Will the Government reconsider providing GFF to the 
contractor in an effort to reduce costs to the contractor 
and therefore benefit from reduced costs that will surely 
be extended via submittal?  With GFF currently 
available aboard NAS Jacksonville and NS Mayport, 
there should be sufficient facilities to provide the 
contractor on an “As is” basis which could dramatically 
reduce costs of the initial contract and the follow on 
option years.

As stated in Section C-0200000, Spec Item 2.4.1, the Government will furnish or make 
available to the Contractor the facilities described in J-0200000-05  for NAS Jacksonville 
and NAVSTA Mayport.  The clause at FAC 5252.245-9300 is revised via Amendment 
0001 to ensure consistency with technical Sections C and J. 

0001

67 8/24/2015 Page 77 of 87

Section J; 
Definitions 

and 
Acronyms 

Attachment J-
1503050-01

Maximum 
Growth

Section J defines Maximum Growth as the limit of 
dominant vegetative growth, excluding seed heads or 
pods. Within bahia grass is a weed like stalk which 
carries a v shaped head of seed pods.  These stalks will 
grow above the tolerances outlined within the grass 
height tables of section J within 2 to 3 days after 
mowing.  Will the USG expect the weed stalks of 
bahiagrass to conform to section J grass height 
standards?

Yes.  A description of Maximum Growth Height provided in Section J, Sub-annex 
1503050 Grounds Maintenance and Landscaping, Attachment J-1503050-01 Definitions 
and Acronyms. 

0001



N69450-15-R-2106
Regional Base Operating Support II (RBOS II)

GOVERNMENT PRE AWARD INQUIRY FORM

SOURCE SELECTION INFORMATION - SEE FAR 2.101 AND 3.104

Page Section Para.
Amend No.

Question No.
QUESTION GOVERNMENT RESPONSE 

Received

68 8/24/2015

RFP Pag 108 
and Section C 

Page 31

RFP Section 
H; and 

Section C  of 
Jax & 

Mayport

H.8 TERMS - 
OPTIONAL 
COL CLINS; 

Section C 
2.13.3.3 of 

both Jax and 
Mayport

Section H: "The Contracting Officer may exercise 
Optional COLS CLINs (1) at time of award (as 
specified in Section C, Annex 0200000) to increase 
service levels above the base level of services for the 
base period and (2) after award to increase or decrease 
COLS provided sixty (60) days written notice is given 
in a manner prescribed by the Contracting Officer."; 
Section C, 2.13.3.3 of both JAX and Mayport reads in 
part:The Government will provide 30 calendar days 
preliminary notice of its intent to change the COLS."; 
Please clarify the notification period.

The timeline within H.8 Terms - Optional COL CLINs is revised to 30 days via 
Amendment 0001 to ensure consistency with Section C, 2.13.3.3.

0001

69 8/24/2015
Section C 
Page 14 Section C 7.1 Key Personn  

"The Contractor shall submit a List of Key Personnel 
and Qualifications per Section F. The Contractor shall 
provide any additional information requested by the KO 
necessary to certify their qualifications. The Contractor 
shall submit an Organizational Chart per Section F 
showing lines of authority of the key personnel and on-
site supervisor(s) for this contract. The chart shall 
include names of personnel and their position title in 
this contract. As a minimum, include the PM, Quality 
Manager, SSHO, and on-site supervisor(s) and who they 
will report directly to for this contract." Do we need to 
name Key Personnel in the proposal submission?

No.  The Contractor shall submit a List of Key Personnel and Qualifications within 15 
calendar days after award per Section F.  

0001

70 8/24/2015 RFP Page 140 Section L

5252.215-
9300 

CONTENT 
OF 

PROPOSALS 
(JAN 2003); 

(a) 
PROPOSAL 
REQUIREM

ENTS.

“5252.215-9300 CONTENT OF PROPOSALS (JAN 
2003); (a) PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS. The 
responsibility determination, non-price proposal, and 
the price/cost proposal shall be submitted in separate 
volumes. The non-price proposal shall not contain any 
cost/pricing information, except for salary information 
provided on resumes.” The Government is implying 
that resumes are required as well as salary information. 
Please clarify.

No, resumes are not required.  RFP Clause 5252.215-9300, Paragraph (a) is corrected to 
remove the language regarding salary information on resumes.  Refer to Amendment 001.

0001

71 8/24/2015 N/A N/A N/A

Waste Disposal costs will vary a great deal depending 
on thr USG mission which the USG cannot accurately 
forecast at this time.  Will waste disposal weigh tickets 
be paid by the USG on a reimbursable basis or must the 
small business carry the cost of all disposal fees under 
the FFP?

All fees associated with disposal shall be paid by the Contractor.

Refer to: Section C, Sub-annex 1503030 Integrated Solid Waste Management, 
Specification Item 3.2 Solid Waste Disposal.

0001

72 8/24/2015 N/A N/A N/A

During the Site Visit on 21 August 2015 at NS Mayport, 
the Government advised on the drive through that the 
land and structures in the RBOS II contractor’s assigned 
laydown area, that all structures are included for use by 
the RBOS II Contractor.  The structures behind the 
Transfer Station such as the office container and the 
maintenance PEB, are the sole property of the 
incumbent RBOS II contractor.

No.  Except for items identified as Government Furnished, the Contractor shall provide all 
equipment, materials, parts, supplies, components, and facilities to perform the 
requirements of this contract.  Refer to Section C, Annex 0200000 Management and 
Administration, Specification Item 2.5 Contractor-Furnished Items.

Refer to: Section J, Attachment J-0200000-05 Government-Furnished Property, Materials, 
and Services for a listing of items identified as Government-Furnished.

0001



N69450-15-R-2106
Regional Base Operating Support II (RBOS II)

GOVERNMENT PRE AWARD INQUIRY FORM

SOURCE SELECTION INFORMATION - SEE FAR 2.101 AND 3.104

Page Section Para.
Amend No.

Question No.
QUESTION GOVERNMENT RESPONSE 

Received

73 8/24/2015

N69450-15-R-
2106 J-

1503010-07 
Custodial 

Inventory - 
NAS 

Jacksonville

Within the custodial inventory, most facilities under the 
header of “Common Output Levels or Service Class” 
show a note advising “Refer to section C, Annex 
0200000 Spec Item 2.13.3 COLS Option”.  However, 
there is not an Annex 0200000 listed with the Section C 
provided.  Can the Government elaborate on what COL 
the facilities with the aforementioned note will be 
placed at?

Refer to Amendment 0001.

Section J, Attachment J-1503010-03 Common Output Level Standards applies to all 
region facilities/spaces listed in the Custodial Inventory provided in J-1503010-07.  The 
Contractor shall price work requirements as detailed per COL Base or Additional 
Measures Level in the corresponding ELIN listed in J-0200000-07.

Upon initial contract award the Government reserves the right to award options to increase 
or decrease COLS for the base period.

The Government reserves the right to increase or decrease the COLS at the time it 
exercises its option to extend the contract at the prices indicated in the schedule for 
1503010 Custodial, 1503020 Pest Control, 1503030 Integrated Solid Waste Management, 
and 1503050 Grounds Maintenance and Landscaping.

0001

74 8/24/2015

N69450-15-R-
2106 J-

1503010-07 
Custodial 

Inventory - 
NAS 

Jacksonville

Many facilities under the header of “Common Output 
Levels or Service Class” show a note advising 
“Mandated”.  Can the USG elaborate on what COL the 
facilities with the aforementioned note will be placed 
at?

COLs do not apply to Mandated requirements.   Mandated requirements revised via 
Amendment 0001.  Refer to Amendment 0001.

0001

75 8/24/2015 J-1503050-03

Per J-1503050-03, Xeriscape is to be maintained.  Can 
the USG define the areas that are or will be considered 
Xeriscape including square footage?

Xeriscape areas provided in Refer to Attachment J-1503050-04 Grounds Maintenance and 
Landscaping Area Inventory for quantity of Xeriscaping.

0001

76 8/24/2015 J-1503050-03

Per J-1503050-03, artificial turf is to be maintained.  
Can the USG define the areas that are or will be 
considered artificial turf including square footage?

Artificial turf areas provided in Refer to Attachment J-1503050-04 Grounds Maintenance 
and Landscaping Area Inventory for quantity of artificial turf.

0001

77 8/24/2015 J-1503050-03

Per J-1503050-03 Trees, hedges and shrubs are now to 
be trimmed for beautification purposes for Prestige and 
COL 3 AM 2.  Was this the intent of the USG?

Refer to Section J, Attachment J-1503050-03.
Common Output Level Standards apply to the areas identified in Attachment J-1503050-
04 Grounds Maintenance and Landscaping Areas and Attachment J-1503050-05 Grounds 
Maps.  The Contractor shall price work requirements as detailed per COLS Base or 
Additional Measures Level in the corresponding ELIN listed in J-0200000-07.

Upon initial contract award the Government reserves the right to award options to increase 
or decrease COLS for the base period.

The Government reserves the right to increase or decrease the COLS at the time it 
exercises its option to extend the contract at the prices indicated in the schedule for 
1503010 Custodial, 1503020 Pest Control, 1503030 Integrated Solid Waste Management, 
and 1503050 Grounds Maintenance and Landscaping.

0001

78 8/24/2015

N69450-15-R-
2106 J-

1503050-05 
Grounds Map 

- NAS 
Jacksonville

Per N69450-15-R-2106 J-1503050-05 Grounds Map - 
NAS Jacksonville, most of the parking areas at 
Yorktown and the Commercial Gates show as not 
covered under grounds maintenance.  This would 
indicate that no service including vegetation control 
will be provided.  Was this the intent of the USG?

No.  Grounds map revised via Amendment 0001.  Refer to Amendment 0001.

0001



N69450-15-R-2106
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Question No.
QUESTION GOVERNMENT RESPONSE 

Received

79 8/24/2015

N69450-15-R-
2106 J-

1503050-05 
Grounds Map 

- NAS 
Jacksonville

Per N69450-15-R-2106 J-1503050-05 Grounds Map - 
NAS Jacksonville, all roads are shown as unimproved 
grounds.  Is the contractor therefore only to remove 
debris that will impede vehicular passage as outlined in 
section C Annex 1503050 spec item 3.3.1 Grounds Care 
and the contractor would therefore not be required to 
remove debris that allows passage but may be 
“unsightly”?

The Contractor shall maintain fire lanes and roadways free of all debris that interferes 
with vehicular passage.  Refer to Section C, Sub-annex 1503050 Grounds Maintenance 
and Landscaping, Specification Item 3.3.1 Grounds Care.  In accordance with Section C, 
Sub-annex 1503050 Grounds Maintenance and Landscaping, Specification Item 3 
Performance Objective - The Contractor shall maintain improved grounds, semi-improved 
grounds, unimproved grounds, and storm drainage systems to ensure a sightly appearance.  
Roadways identified in Section J, Attachments J-1503050-04 Grounds Maintenance and 
Landscaping Areas and J-1503050-05 Grounds Maps shall be maintained accordingly.    

0001

80 8/24/2015

N69450-15-R-
2106 J-

1503050-05 
Grounds Map 

- NAS 
Jacksonville

Per N69450-15-R-2106 J-1503050-05 Grounds Map - 
NAS Jacksonville, most of the shoreline along the 
southern half of the base has been removed for any 
service, was this the intent of the USG?

No.  Grounds map revised via Amendment 0001.  Refer to Amendment 0001.

0001

81 8/24/2015

N69450-15-R-
2106 J-

1503050-05 
Grounds Map 

- NAS 
Jacksonville

Per N69450-15-R-2106 J-1503050-05 Grounds Map - 
NAS Jacksonville, Facility 919 shows that no service 
will be provided for this prestige building’s parking 
areas including the beds within the parking area, beds at 
the front of the building as well as the areas adjacent to 
the north of the facility.  This would indicate that no 
service including vegetation control will be provided 
for these areas.  Was this the intent of the USG?

No.  Grounds map revised via Amendment 0001.  Refer to Amendment 0001.

0001

82 8/24/2015

N69450-15-R-
2106 J-

1503050-05 
Grounds Map 

- NAS 
Jacksonville

Per N69450-15-R-2106 J-1503050-05 Grounds Map - 
NAS Jacksonville, plowing looks to be required around 
the Weapons Area fence line, although the map is 
difficult to make a complete determination.  Please 
provide clarity.

Plowing is required.  Refer to Attachment J-1503050-04 Grounds Maintenance and 
Landscaping Areas for specific quantity of work

0001

83 8/24/2015 N/A N/A N/A

Can the government provide the average annual rainfall 
and the months with the seasonal high levels of rain. 

Refer to Section C, Annex 0100000 General Information, Specification Item 1.6 Climate 
Patterns.

Offerors are encouraged to verify conditions as part of their diligence to assess the nature 
of work and conditions under which work is to be performed. 0001
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84 8/24/2015
FAR 52.249-

8 (c)

Per FAR 52.249-8 (c) Except for defaults of 
subcontractors at any tier, the Contractor shall not be 
liable for any excess costs if the failure to perform the 
contract arises from causes beyond the control and 
without the fault or negligence of the Contractor. 
Examples of such causes include (1) acts of God or of 
the public enemy, (2) acts of the Government in either 
its sovereign or contractual capacity, (3) fires, (4) 
floods, (5) epidemics, (6) quarantine restrictions (7) 
strikes, (8) freight embargoes, and (9) unusually severe 
weather. In each instance the failure to perform must be 
beyond the control and without the fault or negligence 
of the Contractor.  If weather impedes the contractor in 
performing grounds services, will the USG be open to 
acceptance of delays due to conditions outside of the 
contractor’s control as outlined in 52.249-8 which is 
included within the base contract?

The Government may consider acceptance of delays due to conditions outside of the 
contractor's control as outlined in FAR 52.249-8.  This will be determined on a case by 
case basis by the Administrative Contracting Officer.   For example, if weather conditions 
are so severe the ground is saturated with water and work cannot be performed, it may be 
considered an acceptable delay.  However, normal Florida weather patterns will not be 
considered an acceptable delay.  This is a performance based contract and as such, the 
contractor is responsible for managing the appropriate number of crews, schedule, etc. to 
perform services.  

0001

85 8/24/2015 143 Section L

2PM EST 24 August 2015 Questions Cut Off Date -  
Will the Government entertain follow-up questions to 
original questions or additional areas given the number 
of changes to the scope of work from the last 
solicitation, including the addition of COL Pricing 
elements?

No, as stated in the RFP, the GPI cutoff date was 2:00 PM EDT on 24 August 2015.

0001

86 8/24/2015 Section L

Proposal 
Requirements 

(b)(2)(d)

Will the Goverment except the latest software version 
of Excel for pricing?

The information submitted in EXCEL must be Microsoft Office Version 2007 compatible.

0001

87 8/24/2015

Attachment J-
1503010-07, 

Custodial 
Inventory

Attachment J-1503010-07, Custodial Inventory, has 
Area (SF) indicated within the chart for various 
facilities for cleaning and  frequencies indicated in 
Attachment J-1503010-03 (COLS). Please clarify if 
frequencies or Area (SF) should be used in pricing the 
custodial work?

The Contractor is responsible for determining the methodologies used for pricing the 
requirements.  

0001

88 8/24/2015 Page 141 Section L

Proposal 
Requirements

:  (1) 
Responsibilit

y 
Determinatio

n Binder 
Paragraph G  

Do we need to include Teaming Agreement Documents 
for Subcontractors that exceed the 10% of total 
contract  value?   We recognize the letter of 
Commitment, but should we include the teaming 
agreement? 

In accordance with 5252.215-9300 (b)(1)g., teaming agreements are only required if a 
joint venture or partnership arrangement is being proposed.

0001
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89 8/24/2015

Attachment J-
0200000-07 
Exhibit Line 

Items 
Numbers 

Attachment J-0200000-07 Exhibit Line Items Numbers 
Exhibit A for both Mayport and Jacksonville sites 
appear to have similar ELINs assigned to each location 
site.  Can the government identify which ELIN applies 
to which location so that the contract is aware of all the 
specific requirements for each ELIN.    (Example:  
ELIN A001 1503010 Custodial – Spec Item 3 FFP 
Work on Jacksonville site is assigned to 81 Regional 
Support Command and on ELIN A001 1503010 
Custodial – Spec Item 3 FFP Work on Mayport is 
assigned to Bureau of Medicine and Surgery 
(BUMED).)   Which ELIN A001 (JAX or Mayport) is 
assigned to Line Item 2001?  Is JAX ELIN A0001 
assigned to Line Item 2001 and Mayport ELIN A0001 
assigned to 3001? 

Refer to N69450-15-R-2106 Section J - NAS Jacksonville, Attachment J-0200000-07 
ELINs - NAS Jacksonville for ELINs associated with Naval Air Station Jacksonville, 
Florida requirements.

Refer to N69450-15-R-2106 Section J - NAVSTA Mayport, Attachment J-0200000-07 
ELINs - NAVSTA Mayport for ELINs associated with Naval Station Mayport, Florida 
requirements. 

Section B Line Items 2001 through 2066 represents requirements included in Naval Air 
Station Jacksonville, Florida requirements.

Section B Line Items 3001 through 3066 represents requirements included in Naval 
Station Mayport, Florida requirements.

0001

90 8/24/2015 Section B

Section B Line Items 2001  and Line Items 3001 – 3010 
have similar ELINs.  Can the government verify that the 
Line Items will for the same ELINs but for different 
sites.?

Section B Line Items 2001 through 2066 represents requirements included in Naval Air 
Station Jacksonville, Florida requirements.

Section B Line Items 3001 through 3066 represents requirements included in Naval 
Station Mayport, Florida requirements. 0001

91 8/24/2015 Section C

Section C – 
1503020 Pest 
Control -  1.1. 

Concept of 
Operations 
(Vertebrate 

Pests)

Section C – 1503020 Pest Control -  1.1. Concept of 
Operations (Vertebrate Pests)  Does feral pigs fall under 
“other nuisance mammals”?   Does the Government 
have any workload requirements for this portion of 
work? 

Yes.

Vertebrate animals including, but not limited to,
dogs, cats, pigs, squirrels, skunks, snakes, opossums, raccoons, mongoose, etc.

0001

92 8/24/2015 Page 28 Section C

Do the Navy installations retain ownership of hazardous 
materials other than household hazardous waste?  If not, 
when does the contractor take ownership?

The Contractor shall dispose of all hazardous waste in accordance with the Resource 
Conservation and Recovery Act and all other applicable Federal, state and local laws and 
regulations. No disposal of hazardous waste onboard the installation is allowed.

0001

93 8/24/2015 N/A N/A

How much foreign port origin waste was processed last 
year?  In both tons and instances.  We do see the “bag” 
quantity.  What is the disposal location for foreign port 
origin solid waste? 

Historically, home ported vessels, average approximately 14 foreign port waste collection 
occurrences annually, approximately one to two days in duration with two off-loads per 
day.

The Contractor is responsible for determining the disposal location.
0001

94 8/24/2015 Page 63 Section C
Is there a designated processing location for processing 
of recyclables? 

Yes.
0001

95 8/24/2015 Page 63 Section C

Are recyclables sorted by originator? Is the material 
dual streamed? Is the material single streamed? What is 
the list of recyclables? Who retains the value of the 
recycling stream, the contractor or the Navy?

No.

The Contractor shall deliver industrial and commercial recyclable solid waste to an 
approved recycling facility. 

Income generated from the sale of recyclable material shall be returned to the 
Government.  0001
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96 8/24/2015 Page 28 Section C

Who is responsible for maintenance oil leaks? What is 
the procedure for cleaning? Is there a historical cost for 
this?

The Contractor shall prevent, contain, clean up, and report all spills on Government 
property caused by the Contractor, in a manner that complies with applicable Federal, 
state, and local laws and regulations and with the Installation Spill Control Plan at no 
additional cost to the Government.

Refer to Section C, Annex 0200000 Management and Administration, Specification Item 
2.10.2.4 Spill Prevention, Containment, and Clean-up. 0001

97 8/24/2015 NA N/A

Who is responsible for paying for “Rapid Gate” cards 
and base entry?

Costs for obtaining passes through the NCACS are the responsibility of the Contractor.  
Refer to: Section C, Annex 0200000 Management and Administration, Specification Item 
2.8.4 Access to Installation.

Information on costs and requirements to participate and enroll in NCACS is available at: 
http://www.rapidgate.com/vendors/how-to-enroll or by calling 1-877-727-4342.

0001

98 8/24/2015 Page 63 Section C
Does the contract require clean up in the vicinity of 
solid waste containers?

Yes.  Refer to Section C, Sub-annex 1503030 Integrated Solid Waste Management, 
Specification Item 3.1 Solid Waste Collection. 0001

99 8/24/2015 Page 62 Section C
Does the contract include disposal or recycling of 
construction and demolition solid waste?

No.
0001

100 8/24/2015

Who provides the equipment and loader at the solid 
waste transfer station? What are the transfer station 
hours? What is the transfer station staffing 
requirements? What are the permitting and certification 
requirements for transfer station operators?

The Front End Loader at Naval Station Mayport Bulk Transfer Station is provided by the 
Contractor.  
Except for items identified as Government Furnished, the Contractor shall provide all 
equipment, materials, parts, supplies, components, and facilities to perform the 
requirements of this contract.  Refer to Section C, Annex 0200000 Management and 
Administration, Specification Item 2.5 Contractor-Furnished Items.

The Bulk Transfer Station is provided as Government-Furnished Property.  All such 
facilities, equipment, and materials will be provided in 'as is' condition, and their use is at 
the option of the Contractor.   The Government's regular working hours are provided in 
Section C, Annex 0200000 Management and Administration, Specification Item 
2.2.1 Government Regular Working Hours.  Any
other work outside Government regular working hours requires prior KO approval.
 
Refer to Section C, Annex 0200000 Management and Administration, Specification Item 
2.4 Government-Furnished Property, Materials and Services and Section J, Annex 
0200000 Management and Administration, Attachment  J-0200000-05 Government-
Furnished Property, Materials, and Services.

The Contractor is responsible for determining staffing.

Solid Waste Transfer Station operator certification requirements provided in FDEP Permit 
123964-002-SO Solid Waste Transfer Station, Facility ID NED/16/00031954, Building 
2025.

0001

101 8/24/2015

Who is responsible for transporting waste from the solid 
waste transfer station to the ultimate disposal site?

The Contractor is responsible for providing transportation required to perform refuse 
collection, disposal and recycling.

0001

102 8/24/2015

What is the ultimate disposal location?  Is it required to 
use this location? Are tickets required for all scale 
activity?

The Contractor is responsible for determining the location of disposal.

Yes.  The Contractor shall submit individual weight tickets denoting the date, type of 
truck, or container, and tonnage disposed and/or recycled per Section F.  0001
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103 8/24/2015

Is yard waste collection or disposal included in the 
contract?

The Contractor shall recycle all organic debris including grass clippings, brush, tree limbs, 
hedge clippings, etc. Organic debris shall be delivered to an approved recycling facility.  
Refer to Section C, Sub-annex 1503050 Grounds Maintenance and Landscaping, 
Specification Item 3 FFP Work. 0001

104 8/24/2015
How many solid waste containers were replaced in 
FY2014?

Unknown.  The Government does not track this data.
0001

105 8/24/2015 Page 75 of 87

Section J 
Table 

1503030-05

What is the timeline for painting solid waste 
containers?

The Contractor shall meet or exceed the performance objectives set forth in this contract 
24 hours a day, throughout each period of performance.

0001

106 8/24/2015 Section C
Is medical waste transportation and disposal included in 
the RFP?

Biohazardous medical waste disposal is not required.
0001

107 8/24/2015

Are there any on-call services? If so, how are they 
requested/ordered?

The Contractor shall provide the capability to receive, prioritize, correspond, and respond 
to trouble/service calls and task orders during Government regular working hours and 
provide a point of contact at a local or toll free number who can perform the above 
function during other than Government regular working hours.

Refer to Section C, Annex 0200000 Management and Administration, Specification Item 
2.6.1 Work Reception. 0001

108 8/24/2015
How many special work (“floater”?) containers are 
required for the contract at each site? 

The Contractor shall develop and submit a schedule that has been optimized for solid 
waste collection per Section F.  0001

109 8/24/2015

Is the solid waste portion of the RFP a “Performance 
Based Contract?”

Yes.

The Contractor shall develop and submit a schedule that has been optimized for solid 
waste collection per Section F.

Refer to Section C, Sub-annex 1503030 Integrated Solid Waste Management, 
Specification Item 3.1 Solid Waste Collection. 0001

110 8/24/2015

Does foreign port waste include aircraft/airfield 
support?

Yes.

One foreign port waste container shall be permanently staged outside the Air Operations 
terminal, Building 90.

Refer to N69450-15-R-2106 Section C - NAVSTA Mayport, Sub-annex 1503030 
Integrated Solid Waste Management, Specification Item 3.4.3 Foreign Port
Origin Waste. 0001

111 8/24/2015 N/A N/A

What if any ponds, lakes, streams, rivers or other bodies 
of water will be included in the contract for servicing 
past the water’s edge? 

Refer to Section J, Attachment J-1503050-04 Grounds Maintenance and Landscaping 
Areas and J-1503050-05 Grounds Maps for area and location of Shoreline requirements.

0001
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112 8/24/2015 N/A N/A

Will vegetation in water retention and drainage areas be 
required to be serviced that is not directly impeding the 
flow of water through culverts and other inlets/outlets?  
If so, what will be the height requirement for the 
various vegetation and at what points will this 
vegetation be measured?

Yes.

The Contractor shall remove obstructions and control vegetation in storm drainage 
systems to ensure unrestricted flow of storm water runoff. 

The Contractor shall clean and remove debris and sediment from drainage systems that 
would inhibit drainage.

Aboveground storm drainage systems shall be maintained clear of obstructions, debris, 
weeds, and anything else which may restrict runoff flow. 

Vegetation height requirements are not applicable.     

Refer to Section C, Sub-annex 1503050 Grounds Maintenance and Landscaping, 
Specification Item 3.5 Storm Drainage Systems. 

Refer to Section J, Attachment J-1503050-04 Grounds Maintenance and Landscaping 
Areas and J-1503050-05 Grounds Maps for area and location of Storm Drainage Systems.

0001

113 8/24/2015

N69450-15-R-
2106 J-

1503050-05 
Grounds Map 

- NAS 
Jacksonville

Per N69450-15-R-2106 J-1503050-05 Grounds Map - 
NAS Jacksonville, Birmingham shows to only have 
prestige service along the sides of the road to the 
sidewalk from the gate to the corner of Child Street.  
Was this the intent of the USG?

No.  Grounds Map revised via Amendment 0001.  Refer to Amendment 0001.

0001

114 8/24/2015 9 of 80 C
C-0200000 

2.3.3.3 

Reference: "Key stakeholders, including the supported 
commands who will receive services, principal 
individuals from NAVFAC, the performance 
assessment team, and representative(s) of the 
installation(s) will be invited to participate in the 
partnering process."
Question:  Can the government provide the number of 
Government participants anticipated or historically 
attend the Contract Partnering Session?

Historically, approximately 16 Government participants have attended the partnering 
sessions but could vary up or down.

0001

115 8/24/2015 17 of 80 C
C-0200000 

2.8.4

Reference: Paragraph 2.8.4, Access to Installation, 
"All Contractor personnel shall obtain access to the 
installation by participating in the Navy Commercial 
Access Control System (NCACS)," and paragraph 
2.8.4.1, NCACS Program "NCACS is a voluntary 
program in which Contractor personnel".
Question:  These paragraphs contradict each other. Can 
the Government provide clarification to the base access 
requirements?

All Contractor personnel shall obtain access to the installation by participating in the Navy 
Commercial Access Control System (NCACS),
"OR"
by obtaining passes each day from the Base Pass and Identification Office.

Refer to: Section C, Annex 0200000 Management and Administration, Specification Item 
2.8.4 Access to Installation.

0001

116 8/14/2015 all all all

Will the government provide maps and workload data 
for all services to be performed in the Nine (9) Navy 
Operational Support Centers 

Navy Operational Support Center requirements are not included in this solicitation.

0001

117 MAPS all all

Please verify whether the Golf course shown on the 
NAS Jax Grounds map is/is not part of the contract.

No.  Grounds Map revised via Amendment 0001.  Refer to Amendment 0001

0001
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118 all all all
Please provide the square footage of artificial turf at 
Mayport and Jacksonville. 

Refer to Section J, Sub-annex 1503050 Grounds Maintenance and Landscaping, 
Attachment J-1503050-04 Grounds Maintenance and Landscaping Area Inventory. 0001

119 all all all

Will the government provide an equipment laydown 
area at NAS Jacksonville?

Government-Furnished Property provided in  Refer to: N69450-15-R-2106 Section J - 
NAS Jacksonville, Attachment J-0200000-05 Government-Furnished Property, Materials, 
and Services for a listing of items identified as Government-Furnished.

Except for items identified as Government Furnished, the Contractor shall provide all 
equipment, materials, parts, supplies, components, and facilities to perform the 
requirements of this contract.  Refer to Section C, Annex 0200000 Management and 
Administration, Specification Item 2.5 Contractor-Furnished Items.

0001

120 all all all

Will the government provide an equipment laydown 
area at Naval Station Mayport?

Government-Furnished Property provided in Refer to: N69450-15-R-2106 Section J - 
NAVSTA Mayport, Attachment J-0200000-05 Government-Furnished Property, Materials, 
and Services for a listing of items identified as Government-Furnished.

Except for items identified as Government Furnished, the Contractor shall provide all 
equipment, materials, parts, supplies, components, and facilities to perform the 
requirements of this contract.  Refer to Section C, Annex 0200000 Management and 
Administration, Specification Item 2.5 Contractor-Furnished Items.

0001

121 all all all

Will the government provide project management 
office space at NAS Jacksonville?

Government-Furnished Property provided in Refer to: N69450-15-R-2106 Section J - NAS 
Jacksonville, Attachment J-0200000-05 Government-Furnished Property, Materials, and 
Services for a listing of items identified as Government-Furnished.

Except for items identified as Government Furnished, the Contractor shall provide all 
equipment, materials, parts, supplies, components, and facilities to perform the 
requirements of this contract.  Refer to Section C, Annex 0200000 Management and 
Administration, Specification Item 2.5 Contractor-Furnished Items.

0001

122 all all all

Will the government provide project management 
office space at Naval Station Mayport?

Government-Furnished Property provided in Refer to: N69450-15-R-2106 Section J - 
NAVSTA Mayport, Attachment J-0200000-05 Government-Furnished Property, Materials, 
and Services for a listing of items identified as Government-Furnished.

Except for items identified as Government Furnished, the Contractor shall provide all 
equipment, materials, parts, supplies, components, and facilities to perform the 
requirements of this contract.  Refer to Section C, Annex 0200000 Management and 
Administration, Specification Item 2.5 Contractor-Furnished Items.

0001

123 all all all

Is the contractor responsible to provide their own radios 
to maintain contact with the towers while mowing on 
and around the airfields?

Yes.  The frequency will be provided post award.

0001

124 all all all

Please provide the square footage breakdown for the 
A041 ELIN, Maritime Expeditionary Security Squadron 
(MSRON). This facility was not found in the 
Jacksonville Custodial inventory J-1503010-07.

Refer to Section J, Attachment J-1503010-07 Custodial Inventory - NAS Jacksonville for 
Facility Number 938 AFRC  (1st Floor) Maritime Expeditionary Security Squadron 
(MSRON) custodial  requirements.

0001

125 all all all

Please provide the square footage of Xeriscape at 
Mayport and Jacksonville

Xeriscape areas provided in Refer to Section J, Sub-annex 1503050 Grounds Maintenance 
and Landscaping, Attachment J-1503050-04 Grounds Maintenance and Landscaping Area 
Inventory 0001
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126 all all all

 Regarding Section I, Clauses, FAC 5252.245-9300 
"Government Furnished Property, Materials, and 
Services" a - d.  Since the Government is not providing 
any of the referenced items, will the Government 
provide a space on-site for contractor provided office 
trailers and storage trailers and a place to store vehicles 
and equipment or, will the contractor be required to 
provide these elements off site of the Government 
properties?

No.  Except for items identified as Government Furnished, the Contractor shall provide all 
equipment, materials, parts, supplies, components, and facilities to perform the 
requirements of this contract.  Refer to Section C, Annex 0200000 Management and 
Administration, Specification Item 2.5 Contractor-Furnished Items.

A listing of Government-Furnished Property provided in Refer to: Section J, Attachment J-
0200000-05 Government-Furnished Property, Materials, and Services for a listing of items 
identified as Government-Furnished.

0001

127 15

Annex 
0200000 - 

Jacksonville 
& Mayport 2.7.1

Please clarify in offerors' are required to have a Project 
Manager, Quality Manager and Site Safety & Health 
Officer at both Jacksonville and Mayport sites? 

Yes.  The Contractor shall provide a Project Manager (PM), Quality Manager, and Site 
Safety and Health Officer (SSHO) at each installation, Naval Air Station Jacksonville, 
Florida and Naval Station Mayport, Florida.    

0001


	N69450-15-R-2106 GPIs

